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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Dear Inveslor,
On behall of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present Alhamra Daily Dividend

Fund accounts review for the yvear ended June 30, 2024,

Economy Review

Fiscal year 2024 marked a period ol macroeconomic recovery for Pakistan, averting a
looming default brought about by continued economic mismanagement. This turnaround
was primarily altributed to Pakistan entering a new |MF program afier several months of
delay. The government secured a much-needed Stand-by Arrangement (SBA) facility ol
USD 3.0 billion from the IMF in June 23, and managed to receive timely rollovers from
fmendly countries. It also showed unwavering commitment to remain compliant with the
IMF targets and as a result government was able to successfully complete the program.

The caretaker government took office in August 2023 and immediately faced speculative
pressure on Lhe currency, causing it to spike to a record high of 307 in the mterbank
market. Exchange rate in informal market reached a higher ol near 330 PKR/USD
reflecting an increase of speculative activity and rampant uncertainty. The government
ook decisive steps against smuggling of dollar, abuse ol Afghan Transit and illegal
money dealers in September 2023, which spurred a rapid recovery in the exchange rate.
This helped in improving confidence and narrower spreads in open and interbank rates.
The authorities also placed mechanisms to strictly monitor exchange rate payments to
manage the overall external balance. Combination of both administration measures and
sleps to discipline external and [iscal accounts helped restore overall stability. The USD
PKR close the year at 278.3 appreciating by 2.6% since the start of the year.

Country posted a current account deficit (CAD) of USD 464 million in the first eleven
months of the fiscal year 2024 (11MFY24) declining by 88% YoY compared to a deficit
of USD 3.8 billion in the corresponding period last year. Narrowing trade deficit was the
major contributor towards improving CAD as 11.3% increase in exports coupled with an
2.3% drop in imports led o a 17.0% contraction in the trade deficit. The county’s
external position improved with SBP’s foreign exchange reserves increasing to USD 9.4
billion as of June 2024 compared to USD 4.4 billion at the end of last hiscal year. This
was on account of flows from the IMFE, friendly countries and multilateral sources.

Headline inflation represented by CPl averaged 23.9% during the fiscal year 2024
compared to 29.0% last year Inflation remained on the higher side as massive currency
depreciation in the prior periods led to surge in food and energy prices. The government
also hiked electnicity base tarfT and gas prices to comply with the IMF conditions, which
led to further inflationary pressures. The SBP reduced the policy rate by 150bps to 20.5%
in the last monetary policy of the year held on June 10, 2024. The monetary policy noted
a significant decline in inflation, resulting in a substantially positive real interest rate,
which justifies initiating a monetary easing cycle.

The country’s GDI* grew by 2.4% in the hnancial year 2023-24 as compared o -0.2%
last year. Agniculture grew by 6.3%, Services and industnial sector witnessed a paltry
merease of 1.2% each. Historic high interest rates coupled with political uncertainty were
the major culprits behind the subdued industrial and services output. On the fiscal side,
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

FBR tax collection increased by 29.6% in FY24 to PKR 9,285 billion, missing the target
by a modest PKR 130 bilhon.

FUND PERFORMANCE

Durnng the peniod, ALHDDF generated a retum of 21.05% as compared to a returmm of 10.10%
witnessed by the Benchmark, outperforming the benchmark by 10.95%. The Fund kept its
exposure in cash at 79.9% towards the period end.

The Net Assets of the fund as at June 30, 2024 stood at Rs. 14.943 million. The Net Asset Val ue
(NAV) per unit as at June 30). 2024 was Rs. 100.00.

Economy & Market — Future Qutlook

Pakistan GDP is expected to rebound to 3.5% i FY25 afler a disappointing performance
last year where the GDP increased by only 2.4%. The outlook for industrial output is
relatively optimistic with an expected growth of 4.0% compared to 1.2% last year.
Macroeconomic stability, stable currency and decline in mterest rates will help revive the
industrial and service sector growth. Agrniculiure performance 1s likely to remain on the
lower side due to high base efTect.

A new staff-level loan agreement has been reached between Pakistan and the
International Monetary Fund (IMF) under which the country will recetve USD 7.0 billion
over 37 months. The hnal approval of the loan will be miven by the IMF Executive
Board. Successiul continuation ol the IMF program 1s a key positive as 1t will allow us to
tap funding [rom bilateral and multilateral sources. However, our external position still
remains precarious due to debt outflows and our mability to raise [unds through
international Eurobond or Sukuk. Thus, we would continue to run a sustainable current
account this year to stave off external concerns. We expect a CAD of USD 1.0 billion
(0.2% of GDP) in FY25 as policy of consolidation 1s likely to continue under the IMF
umbrella.

The USD PKR 1s expected to remain stable as the government 1s focusing on improving
current account deficit on the back of recovery in export and remittances. Entry into the
new IMF program will also increase visibility on the external funding. We expect
USD/PKR to close the fiscal year around PKR 311.

The inflation reading has started to come down due to base effect and relatively slable
currency. The headline inflation number in June 2024 clocked of 12.6% compared to a
high of 38.0% in May 2023. The core inflation also registered a significant slowdown,
clocking at 14.1% which s a low of 23 months. The inflation reading 15 expected to
decline to single digits in IHFY25. Keeping in view the inflationary trends, external and
fiscal position we expect interest rate to decline to 14-15% by June 25.

For debt holders, we expect Money Market Funds to continue to seamlessly mirror policy
rates thronghout the year. Investors with a rd to long term view can benefit from Bond
and Income Funds where higher duration will create opportunities for capital gans in the
wake of Interest rate outlook. We have added government bonds in Income Funds to
benefit from the expected monetary easing in the near term.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Mutual Fund Industry Review

The Net Assets of the open-end mutual funds industry increased by about 64.6% during
FY24 to PKR 2,574 billion. Total money market funds grew by about 45.0% since June
2023. Within the money market sphere, conventional funds showed a growth of 33.0% to
PKR 629 billion while Islamic funds increased by 58.2% to PKR 679 billion. In addition,
the total fixed Income funds increased by about 104.7% since June 2023 to PKR 756
billion while Equity and related [unds mcreased by 52.3% to PKR 255 hillion.

In terms of the segment share, Money Market [unds were the leader with a share of
around 50.8%, followed by Income funds with 37.3% and Equity and Equily related
funds having a share of 9.9% as at the end of June 30, 2024.

Mutual Fund Industry Outlook

Both Bonds and Equities are likely to do well in the next year on the back of cut in
mterest rates. During the year, signmificant interest of investors is already wvisible in
Income Funds while equity fund i1s likely to see inflows post new IMF agreement
Relatively High interest rates during the period would encourage sustamned flows in the
money market funds as they are ideal for investors with a short-term horizon and low nisk

profile.

QOur operations remained seamless and given our competitive edge in digital access and
online customer experience, we are prepared to get benefits of the growing number of
investors available online.

MANAGEMENT COMPANY

On Apnl 18, 2023, MCB Bank Limited (MCB), being the parent company of MCB-Anf
Habib Savings and Investments Limited. has acquired 21,664,167 (30.09%) shares ol
MCB-Anf Habib Savings & Investment Limited (MCB-AH) f[rom Anf Habib
Corporattion Limited (AHCL). By wvirtue of this transaction MCB Bank Limited’s
shareholding in MCB-AH has increased from 36,956,768 (51.33%) shares to 58,620,935
(81.42%) and AHCL no longer holds any shares in MCB-AH.

Consequently, members of the Company in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM)
held on July 07, 2023 have resolved via special resolution that the name of the Company
be changed from MCB-Anf Habib Savings and Investmenis Limited to MCB Investment
Management Limited and Secunties and Exchange Commission ol Pakistan (SECP) has
approved the change in name on August 15, 2023,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Fund is committed to implement the highest standards of corporate governance. The
Board comprises of eight (8) members including the Chiel Executive Officer (CEO) and
has a diverse mix of gender and knowledge. The Board consists of | female and 7 male
directors, categorized as follows:
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e 4 Non - Executive Directors;
= 3 Independent Directors: and
e | Executive Director (CEQO).

The details of above are as under:

- Name Status
No.
1. Mr. Haroun Rashid Non-Executive Direclor
2. Mr. Shoaib Mumiaz Non-Executive Director
3. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir MNon-Executive Director
4.  Mr. Manzar Mushtaq Non-Executive Director
5. Syed ; Sayedl  Mockal Independent Director
Hussain
6. Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy Independent Director
7. Ms. Mavra Adil Khan Independent Director
Mr. Khawaja  Khalil Z :
8. Shah Executive Director

Membership in other Board
Committees

MNone

HR&ER* Commtice

HR&R* Committee
Audit Commuttee

Audit Commuttee
Audit Commuittee (Chairman)

HR&R* Committce (Chairman)
HRE&ER* Commiliee

HR&ER* Commtice

* HRER stands for Human Resource and Remuneration

Management 1s continuing to comply with the provisions of best practices set out in the
code of corporate povernance. The Fund remains committed to conduct business in hne
with listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange, which clearly defined the role and

responsibilities of Board of Directors and Management.

The Board of Directors 1s pleased to report that:

a. The financial statements, present farrly the state of affars, the results of operations,

cash ows and changes in equity:

b. Proper books of accounts of the fund have been maintained;

¢. Appropriate accounting policies as stated in the notes to the financial statements
have been consistently applied in preparation of fnancial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

d. Intemational Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, provisions of
the Non-Banking Finance Companics ( Establishment & Regulations) Rules, 2003,
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008,

requirements of the respective Trust Deeds and directives 1ssued by the Secunties
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

& Exchange Commission ol Pakistan have been [ollowed in the preparation of
ftnancial statements. ;

». The system of miemal control 15 sound m design and has been elfectively

implemented and monitored with ongoing efforts to improve it further;

. There are no significant doubts upon the fund’s abihty to continue as gomg
COMCEIT;

. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate
Governance, as detailed m the listing regulations;

. The outstanding taxes, statutory charges and duties, if any, have been fully
disclosed in the audited Hnancial statements;

The statement as to the value of investments of provident/gratuty and pension fund
15 not applicable on the Fund but applies to the Management Company; hence no

disclosure has been made in the Directors™ Report.

As at June 30, 2024, the Company 1s in compliance with the requirements of
Directors’ Tramning Program, as contained m Regulation No. 20 of the Code;

. The detailed pattern of sharcholding as on June 30, 2024 is annexed;

A formal and effective mechanism 1s put in place for an annual evaluation of the
Board’s own performance, members of the Board and Committees ol the Board,

. The details of attendance ol Board of Directors meeting 1s disclosed m financial
statements. Below are the details of committee meetings held during the vear ended
June 30, 2024

1. Meeting of the Audit Committee.

During the year, four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The
attendance of each participant is as follows:

Number Number of meetings
Name of Persons ﬂi.- Attendance Leave
meetings reaulred Attended canted
held e B
L Syed '%.T_I'-'Hll Meekal 4 4 4 0
Hussain
2. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 4 4 4 0
3. Mr. Manzar Mushtag 4 3 4 0
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2. Meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee.

During the year, two (2) meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration
Commuttee were held. The attendance of each participant is as follows:

Number of meetings
Number
Name of Persons nl: Atten['lam:e Attended Leave
meetings | required granted
i Mr. Fahd Kamal
" Chinoy 2 2 2 -
2. Mr. Shoaib Mumtaz 2 2 2 -
3. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 2 2 1 1
4 Ms. Mavra Adil
' Khan 2 2 | 1

n. The trades in the Units of the Fund were carried out during the year by Directors,
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary, and Chief Internal Auditor of the Management Company and
their spouses and minor children.

Dividend
- Investment Redemption s
;‘;_ Name Designation | Distribuotion
{(Number of Uniis)

e E;I:::cial &
1. | Asif Mehdi . 54,889.04 54,972.36 33.44

Rizvi Operating

Offhcer

Altaf Ahmed | Company

= Faisal Secretary 108,429.95 108,607.30 182.84
EXTERNALAUDITORS

The Fund’s external auditor’s M/s. A.F Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants have
retired after completion of audit for Financial Year ended June 30, 2024. The Audit
Committee has recommended re-appointment of M/s. A.F Ferguson & Co. Chartered
Accountants as external auditors of the Fund for financial year ending June 30, 2025 and
the Board has also endorsed the recommendation of the Audit Commitice. M/s. ALF
Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants has also expressed their willingness to act as
the Fund’s external auditors.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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On behalf of Dircetors,

e } '-f:r:'__"__,d{ ;
'D:-:__l_."'"-;- i ,.-’f .
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Chief Exccutive Officer Dircctor
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Fund Type and Category
Alhamra Daily Dividend Fund is an Open-End Shariah Compliant (Islamic) Income Scheme.
Fund Benchmark

The benchmark for ALHDDF is Six (6) months average deposits rates of three (3) “A” rated Scheduled
Islamic Banks or Islamic windows of Conventional Banks as selected by MUFAP.

Investment (Ybjective

The scheme 1s aimed at meeting investors’ short to medium term investment requirements. The scheme seeks
to provide investors' a daily dividend through investment in Shariah Compliant instruments.

Invesiment Strategy

The Fund shall be subject to such exposure limits as are specified in the Rules, the Regulations and directives
issued by SECP from time to time. The Fund will distribute daily dividend to the unit holders, which will be
reinvested as agreed upon by the unit holders.

Manager™s Review

During the period. ALHDDF generated a return of 21.05% as compared to a return of 10.10% witmessed by
the Benchmark, outperforming the benchmark by 10.95%._ The Fund kept its exposure in cash at 79.9%
towards the pernod end.

The Net Assets of the fund as at June 30, 2024 stood at Rs. 14,943 million as compared to Rs. 2,991 million
at June 30, 2023, The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as at June 30, 202 4 was Bs. 100.00.

Asset Allocation as on June 30, 2024 (% of total assets)

Asset Allocation (Yeage of Total Assets) Jun-24
Cash T9.9%,
Other including receivables 2.8%
TFCs/Sukuk including IPO/Pre-1PO Amount 17.3%
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Assed Quality as on June 30, 2024 (% of toial assets)

Ab-, 12 0% Not Rated,
2.8%

AN, 0.7%
A1, 12.3%

AMA, 0.1% Alt, 5.0%

At 671

Saad Ahmed
Fond Manager
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

CENTRAL DEPQWTLRY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Difice:

S Houss, 95-8, Block "H

S0 M Main Shabra-a-Faisal
Earahi - PASOD. Faboile

Tel: (F2-211 1171-111 500

P B =210 3TN0 - 23

LIAL whsnse CENTERESLATT LoV
Frosi info@odopei com

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
ALITAMBA DAILY DIVIDEND FUND

Report of the Trustee par uast to Regulstion 41(h) and clause § of Sehedule V of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Eptifies Regulatiom, 2008

We Central Depository Company. of Pakistan Licited, being the Trustee of Alhssrs [Iaily
Devidens Fusd (the Fund) ate of the opinion that MCH Investmens Monssement Limiest baing
{he Mamagemen Compeny of the Fund kas (n all matesinl redfecty st pad the Funad "'I'-”'“"F
the year ended June 30, 2004 |a spcordance with the provisions. o the fullowing

{t Lamintl oo oposed on the mvesimen: powessof the b neipement Compahy Under the
constitutive docamants al {he Fungd:

[ i3 The priviag. liusnee snd redermstion of wills ire eerticd ol im wocordance with the
requiremicnts of the constitutive doeuimens of the Fund:

Gy Themenagement fme oo payvable (o Commission amd olher Spremses i from (he Fumsd
during the peicd oo n scvondunce with the sppilicable regulstory framewarks gl

{iv)  The MNon-Hanking Finance Compordes (Fegbl et gnd Begilalion] Railes, 20070, e
Nen-Hanking Frownce Companies and Notllis]d Enitics Regnlutions, 2008 snd (ke
aumnsisutive docurente of the Fuod

For the stention of unll holders, during in omite intpectlon of the Manngainent Capppany, the
Securities und Exehanpe Commission of Paldsss (SECP) identifiod cortals ot redsred Lo
(e churging and allocotion of wlliing wod marketing expesey o the Fund Acieemdingly, (b
Mana pement Compasy, following the gaidsnce and merpretatme provided by the SECP. will
coumpoale (o the entiilel] unil baldis

B
I
b
s
Chief Exegutive Officer
Cesira] Deposttary Comtpany' of Paklstan Limied

Kamchi: September 30, 2024




REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY BOARD

Karachl: September 23, 2024

REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY BOARD

Alhamdulillah, We the Sharlah Advisory Board of Alhamra Daily Dividend Fund (the Fund), are issulng this
report in accordance with the Offering document of the Fund. The scope of the report IS to express an opinion
on the Shariah compliance of the Fund's activities.

It {5 the responsibility of M/s MCB Investment Management Limited, the management company of the fund, to
establish and maintain a system of internal controls to ensure compliance with Shariah guidelines. Dus
responsibil ity Is to express an opinion, based on our review of Lhe representation made by the management,
o the extent where such compliance can be objectively veriHed,

A review is limited primarily to Inguire to the Mamogement Company's personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the management conmpany to comply with preseribed eriteria In the lght of the
above, we herehy comify that

»  We have reviewed and approved the modes of investment of Alhamira Dally Dividend Fund
(ALHDDF] in the light of the Sharfah gutdelines,

» Al the provisions of the scheme and investments made on account of ALHDDF by Management
Company are Sharialy Compliant and in acenrdance with the eriteria established.

On the basls of information provided by the Management Company, all the operations of
ALHDDF for the year ended June 30, 2024 have bean In compliance with Shariah principles,

May Allah bless us with Tawfeeg o accomplish these chevished tasks, make us successful [n this world and in
thi herealter, al'rdd,'?fgwu our mistakes,

"7_/* ,.4“"{ 1

-/ AV

'..-»-"
Dr Muhammad Zubair Lsmani Dr Fjar Abhmed Samadan|
(Shariah Advisar) (Shariah Advisor)

Far and on be half of Shariah Advisory Board
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SHARIAH COMPLIANCE AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

UH Hassan Naeem & Co.

Chartered Accolriants

401 Progreivy T
STarah-e-Fais
ik, Pkl

one #3020 METFESY-0
-] LR e

Independent Assurance Report on Compliance with the Sharinh Govermance Regulations, 2023

To the unlt holders of Alhamra Dally Dividend Fand (ihe Fund)]

L Intreduction

Wi have undertakén 3 reasonable Jssurance engagemant that the Securities and Exchange Cormmiwsbon
of Pakistan (SECP| has required in terms of its Shariah Govemance Rzgulatons. 3025 jthe Reguiations)
Exteimal Sharjakh Audit of Althamra Dally Dividend Fund (the Fund) for assessing compliance of the Fund's
fEnancial arrangemanis, contracts, and transactions having Shariah mplcations with Sharlah princples for
the year ended june 30, 2024, Thiz sngagement w2 conducted by o multdisciplinary team inciuding
assbrance practtioners and mdependent Sharlah schokaris)

Z. Applicable Criterla

The criteria for the assumance engagarment, againet which the underlying subject marer (Hnanclal
arrangsiments, fontracts, and transactions having Sharfah implcations far the year prded June 30, 2034}
i5 assessed, comprise the Sharlzh principles and rules as defined in the Rzgulstions end reproduced as
under,

[ Legal and regulatory framework administered by the Commission;

il. Sharish standards =susd by the Accounting and Audiong Organizaton for islmic Fnancial
Inssitutions (AADIFIL, as notified by Commission;

iii, |siamic Financial Accounting Standards, develsped by the Insthuts of Charered Accountants of
Pakistan, as notified by the Comrmission;

iv,  Gusdance and recommendations of the Shariah advisory committes, as notifed by Commission;
and

¥, Approvals, rulings or pronouncements of the Shariah supervisory board or the Sharish sdvisor of
the islamic financial insttution, in e with (i © (v} above

The above riteris were evaluated for their Implicatons an the financial gstements of the Fund for the
year ended June 30, 2024, which are snnemd

1. Management’s Responsibility for Shariah Compliznce

Management is responsible (o ensure that the financial arrangements, contrzcts, snd transactions having
Shariah (mplications, enterad into by the Fumd with s cuttomers, other financial ingmitutions, and
stakeholders, and related policies and procedures, are, |n substance 2nd In thair legal form, in complisnce
with the requiremeits of Shasiah rules and principlés, The manage ment [5 glse responsible for the desen,
implementation, and maintenance of appropriate internal control procedures with respect to such
compliance gnd malntensncs of relevant arcounting records.

ke mant gl Ly e irmons| ¢ Semsirh of ceapesl somurtger i W nairy s

Lahoms OTow 1994, Sy lemal Laoem <000 (Pe e - Lt
slamabad Ofioe: s Lowwes Groued Pall Fass |154] Faple-Hlag 2=, Bl ams Rarihed foh e m FORUM OF FIRMS
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SHARIAH COMPLIANCE AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

UH Hassan Naeem & Co.

 hartered Accountants

4, Our Independence and Quality Control

Wi have complied with the independience and other sthical requirements of the Code of Ethles for
Chartered Accountanis ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, which i§ founded an
fundamental princlples of integnty, objectivity, professional competence and due care. confidentalitg, and
professions! behavior

The firm applies international Standard on Cuality Control 1 *Quaklty Control for Firma That Perform Audits
and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, And Other Assurance snd Relat=d Services Engagements*
and sccordingly malntaing @ comprahensive syster) of quatity controd, Including documented pokelss and
procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professignal standards, and zpplicsbiz legal
and regulatory requirements.

5. Our Responsibility and Summary of the Work Performed

Our resporstbllity In connection with this =ngagement is to express an apnion ¢n the compliance of the
Fund's financlal arrangements, contracts, and transactions having Sharlah implications with Shariah
principies, in all material respects, for the year ended June 30, 2024, bazed an the svidence we heve
obtained. We conducted our ressonable assurance engagement in acoordance with Imernations] Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000, Assurance Engapements other than audits or reviews of historical
financial satements’, ksued by the Imterpational Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.

That standard requires that we plan and perform this engasement to obtain reatonsbis ssursnce 3bout
whether the compliance of the Fund's financial arrangements, contracts, and transsctions having Shartah
implicstions with Shariah principlas & free from matenzl misstatement

Thi procedures seleci=d by us for the engagement depended op our judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of matecial non-compliance with the Sharlah princlplss, In making those risk asssssmants, we
wonsigared and tested the internal control relevant 1o the Fund's complinnce with the Shariah principles
in order to desen procedures That are sppropriste in the circumstances, but not for the puspoes of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control. We have desigred and
performed necessary verfication procedures on various fimandal arrs Ngemems, contracts, and
transactions having Sharlah implications and related policies and procedures based an judgmental and
wystematic samples with regard to the comphiance of Shariah principles {criteria specified inpars 2 2bave).

We beiieve that the evidence we have obtained through perfarming our procedures was sulficient and
appropriate to provide @ hasis for our opinkon,

7. Corclusian

Based on our reasonable assursnce engagement, we report that In our opinisn, Fund's financial
arrangements, contracts, snd transactions for the vear ended fune 30, 2024 are in compliance with the
Shariah principles [criteriz specified in pars 2 above), in all matedal especs

UHY Hatsan Nasern & Co,
{hantered Accountants
Engagement Partner: Arslan Ahmed
Dated: September 27, 2028

T L T TP eI ST T g g e e
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

g

pwe AFFERGUSON&CO.

INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Unit holders of Alhamea Daily Dividend Fund
Report on the Audii of the Financial Sistements

Opinion

We have amdited the financial satemnents of Alhsmra Daily Dividend Fond (the Fund), which comprise the
statement of ssets and Habilities ss a1 June 30, 2004, and the income statement, statement of
enmprehensive income, ststement of movement in unkt halders” fund and cash fow stuseenent for the year
then onded, and notes to the financial statements, inchuding material secounting podicy information.

I e opletbon, the wceompanying linaneinl statesments glve o troe and falr view of the finsnclal posdtion of
the Fund 25 at June g0, 2024, and of its financin] performonce and itg cash flows for the year then ended in
aecordunee with the sceounting and reporting standards as spplicable in Pakistan,

Busis for Opinion

We ponducted our audit in scconduncs with [nternational Standards on Anditing (I5As) as spplicable i
Pakistan, Cur responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor's Respansibilities
for the Audit of the Finoneial Stadements seotion of our report. We are independent of the Pund is
wccordanee with the Tnternational Ethics Standards Boand for Accountants” Code of Erhies for Professiona
Appirusitants ba ad by the Institite of Chartered Accomitants of Pikistari (the Code) and we have
fulfilles] our other othical reaponsibilitien in acoordance with the Code, We believe that the audit evidence
we have obinined is sufficient and appropriste to provide o basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Koy amdlt matiers are those matters that, in our professtonal judgment, were of mast significance in oor
aucdit of the financlal statements of the curpent pedod. Thess mattees were addressed in the context of oar
sudit of the finencin! statements as o whole, and in forming sur opinion therson, and we do not-provide a
sojparate optnion on thess matters

Fallowing i the keyv asdit mattes:

graliets S B b
i NetAsset Value (NA

[Refar notes f and 6 to the financial
statermenta)

Balances with hanks sd Investments constitute | Our sucdit procedores smongst others incioded the following:
thie most significant components of the net anset | . il Itbepnale i 1 he
valoe. Belssees vith bauka of the Pud ot | SHneece of (o eeocat ool s balanots il
{Jume o, 2024 aggregated f0 Re 11991755 bonks an ot June 30, 2004 and traced it with the books
millian and Liivestmimta amoiiied o 00 2698 gn reenrds of the Fuind. Wiiee such confismotions were
it sot availabie, alternate skt procedures were performed;
The existencn of balances with banbs smd thrl. Re-preformed ynluation to nssess that javestments are
| enintenee and r wilyation of |I'I1.'HI'I'III1Il| carrlod an per fhe valupiion methodalogy speeified in the
1

for the deter of WAV of the Pusd a5 st sceounting palicies; and

June 36, 206q wan conaldered a high risk niea

| +  Ubiaboed bapk econcilatlon statemenis and besled
!undﬂ:x:uﬁuu wie conaidored This as n ey audit iy foema on 8 e _

A, B PERCUSON & 00, (harteral Aceountond, o rwmiber ffein of the Mo neficonk
State Life Bullding Mo 5-C, {1, Ohmedrigar Read, P.0. Box 4716, Kdrochi-peood, Piakis tom
Tel: +0@ (o)) yaamttln-0, arga 57 Fax: +9r (31 38 1500 38 s/ sy ma0; <pmi punc.ommy/pls

o KARACH oL AHORE o 55 AMARAD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

pwcC AFFERGUSON&CO.

her Matter

The financial statemnents of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2023, wore audited by another fiom of
Chartered Accomntants who hed expressed an onmiodified opindon thereon vide there report dated
Seplember 22, 2003,

Other Information

Munagement |3 resposaible for the other information, The other nformation eomprises the nformation
included in the Asmmal Report, but doss not inclode the Guancial statements and our sodilors veport
theress.

Out opimion on the fimancisl statements does sot cover the other information and we do mot express any
form of e nee conchurion thereon,

In comneation with our sudit of the financla] statements, our responsibility is to resid the other information
anid, in doing so, condder whether the other information fs materially inconststent with the financial
atgtamatits ae o khnodedge obitalied in the andil of otherwise appeass 10 be materially olsstated 1, hased
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there isa moterial misstatoment of this other information,
we are reguired (o report that fict. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsihilities of Monagement and Board of Directors of the Management Company for
the Financlal Statements

M ment |8 responsible for the preparstion and feir presestation of the Gnancial statements In
e moe with sceounting and reporting standards as applioable in Paldstan, and for such istornal vontrol
o manngement determines b necewsary to enable the preparation of financial statements that age free from
rraterisl misstatement, whether doe to fraud or error.

In preparing the fnanchal statements, mansgement is m;mﬂ:h{wm“ﬁw Fund’s ability 1o
comtingn & 8 going concern, disclosing, a8 npplicible, maners related to going coneern and vatng the poing
eotieern hasls of acoounting unless management elther intends o lguidate the Pund or to cease operations,
ot has mo maliatic alternative but 1o do s,

Baard of direetors of the Management Company is responuible for overseeing the Pund's financlal reporting
proces.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Siatements

O objoctives are to obtain reasonable sssurance about whetber the financlal statements s o whole am
from from inatiesial iilsstntement, whether doe to frand or ertor, and 0o Bese an suditor’s report that
includis our cpinkon, Reasonable stsumnce is a high bevel of assurance, but i not » gearantee that an it
eondested in necordance with 1SAs an applicable in Pakistan will always datect 8 material mltotement
when it exists. Meslatements can arlse from fraud or emor and are oonpidered material i, inddvidually or
in the aggrepate. they eould reasonahly be cxpected to infiuenee the seonomic devisions of nsers tuken on
the bamis of these financia] statements.

rt oof am wudit o ascordance with 15As ss applicable in Pakistun, we exercise professionn] judgment
and mainiain professkonal skepticiam throughout the audie, We alao:

*  ldentify and sssess the dakn of material misstatement of the financld] statoments, whether duee to fraod
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain sudit evidence thal
is sufficent and appropriste to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a miterial
misstatement resalting from frand @ higher than for one resulting from ervor, 28 frasd may involve
eallusion, forgery, mientiona) cminmsinns, misrepresentations, of the override of internal control

Mes
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

§ 3
pwe AFFERGUSON&CO.

*  Obtain an undecstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that wre appropriate in the dreomstances, but not for the purposs of expressing an opinfon en the
effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.

*  FEvaloate the appropristencss of scoounting policies used nnd the reasonsbleoess of accounting
estimates nnd related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriatoness of management's use of the going concem hasds of aceounting and,
bised on the andit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
eonditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fond's ability to eontinue a3 & going coneern, If wa
conciude thal a materkal uncertalnty exists, we e required to drew attenton in oor suditor's report to
the related disclosures in the finaneial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify oor
opinlen. Our conclusions are based on the sudit evidenee obtained up o the date of our auditer's repord,
However, futire events or conditions may canse the Fund to cesse 10 continge 5& 4 going coneerm,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, strocture snd content of the financial statements, including the
diaclosures, and whether the Ananciol statements represent the underlying transsetions and events in
o menner that achieves fair presentation,

We commumicate with board of directors of the Monagement Compony regarding. among other matters,
the planmed scope snd timing of the audit and signifieant sodit fndings, meloding anv significant
deficiencies in internal eontrol that we identify doring oor aodit,

We also provide board of directors of the Management Company with u statement that we have complied
with relevant ecthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independenee, and where
applicahle, related safegunrds,

From the mstters communicated with board of directors of the Management Company, we dotermine thogs
matters that were of mast significance in the sudit of the financial staternents of the surrent period and ave
therefore the hey audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's report anless luw or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extrémely rare cireomstances, we deternine that
i mrtiter shouid not be communioated in our report becaoss the adverse consequences of dolng so would
reasonably be expected to putweigh the publie interest benefits of such communicstion,

Report on Other Legal ind Regolatory Requirements

Based on our podit, wefurther report that in onr opinion the financial statements have bsen prepared o all
material respects in pecordanee with the relevant provisicens of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and
Motified Entities Regulations, 2008,

The engagement partnar on the audit resulting in this independent nnditor's report iz Junaid Mesin,

whae B

AFETF E Co.

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Tiated; October g, 2004

UDMN; ARZ0Z241 0611 5vI9Bb0Gw
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AS AT JUNE 30, 2024
MNote June 30, June 30,
2024 2023

——— {Rupees in "000') ——
ASSETS
Balances with banks 5 11,991,756 1,872 888
Investmenis 6 2 545 000 1,000,000
Profit recevable T 343 119 102 597
Advances and other receivables 8 75,970 65,383
Total assets 15,005,854 3,040 868
LIABILITIES
Payable to MCE Investment Management Limited - Managemenl Company G 23,169 8,129
FPayable against redemption of unils 21 857 39,012
Dividend payable 18.298 3,001
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 10 - ]
Total liabilities 63,324 50,237
MNET ASSETS 14,942 530 28480 631
Unit holders® fund (as per statement attached) 14,942,530 28480 631
Contingencies and commitments 1

—— |Number of units) —
Number of units in issue 149 425 305 29,906 314
(Rupees) ———

Net asset value per unit 100.00_ 100.00

The annexed noles from 1 o 27 form an inlegral parl of these financial stalemenis.

For MCB Investment Management Limited

(Management Company)
e ,f;,f’ A . Mﬁﬁ‘t w‘mi.—a_
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

INCOME

Profit on savings accounts with banks
Profit on term deposi receipls

Income from Bai muajjal

Income from certificate of musharakah

Income on corporate sukuk cerdificates
Total income

EXPENSES

Remuneration of MCB Investment Management Limited - Managemenl Company
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneralion of the Management Company

Allocated expenses

Selling and marketing expenses

Net income for the year before taxation
Taxation

Met income for the year after taxation
Eamings per unit
Allocation of net income for the year

MNet income for the year after tzxation
Income already paid on units redeemead

Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains
- Excluding capital gains

The annexed notes from 1 o 27 form an integral part of these financial stalements.

Note

91
92
93
9.4

413

For MCB Investment Management Limited

(Management Company)

T
A '

P,
P i A

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

929

For the year ended
June 30, June 30,

2024 2023
—-—— (Rupees in *000") ——
1,410,724 452 588
9,974 7251
25 095 32 957
10,521 4114
258.133 27 210
1,714 447 594 120
43,727 18,931
5,685 2 461
6,810 8298
35,541 21298
10 9
|73 43 5497
1,622 674 560,523
1,622 674 550,523
1,622 674 560,523
1,622 674 550,523
1,622 674 550 523
1,622 674 560,523

Ty

Director
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

For the year ended

June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
—— [Rupees in "0007) —
Net income for the year after taxation 1,622 674 550 523
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,622 674 550 523

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an integral par of these financial stalements.

For MCB Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)

o
- .--..___..-' . o ] A
P M Muﬁén%mﬁin‘v—

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

HNel assels at the beginning of tho year

kesuance of 498,780,522 units (Z023: 116023470 wnils)
- Capital value (at ex-net assets value por unif at
beginringg of the yoar)
- Element of Income
Total proceeds on issuanceo of units

Redemption of 379,261,531 units (2023: 162,638,167 units)

- Capital value (al o-niel assets value per unil at
beginning of the year)
- Element of loss
Total payments on redemption of units

Total comprehensive income for the yoar
Distribution for the year ended June 30, 2004
Distribution for the year ended June 30, 2023
Mot income for the year less distribution

Net aszets at the end of the year

Undistributed incoma brought forward
- Reabsod incomae
- Unreafized income

Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains
- Bxcluding capital gains

Disiributions msde during tho year
Undistributed income carriod forward

Undistributed income carmied forward
- Realised Income
- Unrealised incoma

MNet assels value per unit al the beginning of the year

Mot assels value per unit at the end of the year

18

Year ended Juno 30, 2024

Yoar anded Juna 30, 2073

Capital vakuo "Tm Total Capital vahuo "m""1 Total
(Ruposs in 0007
2,990,631 2900631  7.652.101 7,652,101
49,878,052 sagra0s2 || 11602347 11,602,347
3578050 FATR052 11602347 7,602,347
(37.926.153) (37.926.153)| | (16,263 817) (16.263,817)
[37.526,153) (37.026,153) (16.263817) {16,263 817)
T 1622674 1622674 — 1 se05:| 55054
(1622674)| (1.622.674) : :
- - {550.523)]  {550.523)
14,942 530 14942530 2090631 — 200063
| 1522674 |_sso53
1,622,674 550,523
(1.622,674) (550,523)
(Rupoes) (Rupeas}
100,00 100,00

100.00

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB Investment Management Limited

(Management Company)

5

e P |
_.:_-F';_-ﬂ*';,a-’"' ,—.- -

"y
]

Chief Executive Officer

931

Chief Financial Officer

10000

T ay

Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Mel income for the year before laxation

Adjustments for:
Reversal of provision for Sindh Workers' Wetfare Fund (SWWF)

Advances and other receivables

Increase | (decrease) in liabilities

Fayable to MCB Investment Management Limited - Management Company
Payable against redemption of units

Dividend payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipls agains! issuance and conversion of unils
Payment against redemption and conversion of units
Dividend paid

Net cash generated from [ (used in) financing activities

Net increase [ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)

T
A '

P,
P i A

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

For the year ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
e (Rupees in 000) ———
1,622 674 550,523
. 36,257
1,622 674 586,780
{1,545 .000) {aar,770)|
(240,522) (11,831)
(10,596) {24 426}
(1,846,118) (1,024,027)
15,040 2073
{17,155) (103,642)
15,207 381
{5) 5
13,087 {101,183)
(210,357) (538,430)
49 878,052 11,802 347
(37,926,153) (16,263 817)
(1.622 674) 550,523
10,329 225 (5,211,993)
10,118,868 (5,750,423)
1,872 888 7,623,311
11,991,756 1,872 BBB

T ay

Director
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Alhamra Daily Dividend Fund {thae Fund) was established through a Trust Deed executnd between MOCB-Arif Habib
Savings and Investments Limited (now MCEB Investmeni Management Limited), as Management Company and
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as Trustoe. The Trust Deed of the Fund was approved by
the Securiies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its letter dated July 30, 2017 conseguent to which
Trust Decd was execuied on August O7, 2017 in accordance with the Asset Management Companies Rules, 1995
{AMC Rules) mepealed by the Non-Banking Finance Companies {Esiablishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (NBFC
Rules). During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Trust Act, 1882 was repealed due to promulgation of Provisional
Trust Act namely “Sindh Trusis Act, 20217 (the Sindh Trust Act) as empowered under the Eighteenth Amendment to
the Consfitution of Pakistan. The Fund was rogistored under the Sindh Trust Act on August 12, 2021.

In April 2023, MCB Bank Limited acquired the entire shareholding of Arif Habib Corporation Limited (AHCL) in MCB
Arit Habib Savings and Investments Limited after which the shareholding of MCB Bank Limited has increased from
51.33% o 8142% in the Management Company and AHCL no longer holds any shares in the Mamagemont
Company. Consequently, members of the Management Company in an Extra Ordinary Genoral Meeting (EOGM)
hold on July 7, 2023 resolved via special resolution that the name of the Management Company be changed from
MCEB Arf Habib Savings and Investments Limited to MCB Investment Management Limited.

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to act as an Asset Management Company under the Non-
Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Reguiations) Rules, 2003 through a certificate of registration issued
by the SECP. The registarcd office of the Management Company 13 situated at 2nd Floor, Adam Jee House, L
Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan.

The fund is an open endod mutual fund and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity
of the fund is to provide a high absolute retum by investing in debt securities. Units are transforable and can be
redeemed by surmendenng to the Fund. The Fund has been calegorized as "Shariah Compliant Income Scheme" by
the Board of Directors of Managemant Company in accordance with the requiremants of Circular 7 of 2009 dated
March &, 2009 issued by the SECP.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned an asset manager rating of "AM1* on Octobar 06,
2023 (2023 "AMY" dated October 6, 2022} to the Management Company and 'AA-(f)' as stability rafing dated March
8, 2024 (2023: "AA-(T)' dated February 17, 2023) to the Fund. The mating reflects the Management Company's
expencnced management team, structured investment process and sound quality of systems and processes.

Tifle to the assets of the Fund is held in tho name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the
Trustee of the Fund.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The transacions underaken by the Fund in accordance with the process prescnboed under the Shariah guidelines
issued by the Shanah Advisor are accounted for on substance rather than the form prescnbed by the sforementioned
guidofines. This practice is being followed to comply with the requirements of the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordanco with the accounting and reporing siandards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporiting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Accounting Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standamds Bozard (LASB) as notified undar the Companics Act, 2017,

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act 2017, along with part VIIIA of the repealed
Companmies Ordinance, 1984; and

- the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Rogulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), the Mon-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Enfities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and the
requirements of tha Trust Deed.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Where provisions ol and direclives lssued under the Companles Acl, 2017, parl V1A of the repealed Companies
Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and tho requirements of the Trust Deed differ from e
roguirements of IFRS Accounting Standards, the provisions of and directives isseed under tho Companies Acl, 2017,
part VIIA ol the ropealed Compandes Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and he
requiremants of the Trust Deed have been followod.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are
effective in the current year

Thore are corlain amendments o the published accounting and reporting standands thal are mandatory for the
Fund's annual accounting period beginning on July 1, 2023, However, these are nol considered Lo be relevant or did
nol ave any matodal effect on the Fund's financial siatements and ave, thorefore, nol been disclosed in these
financial stalemonts excopl thal duning the yoar certain amondments to 1AS 1 'Presentation of Financal Statements®
have become applicable lo the Fund which require entiies lo disclose their material accounling policy Informalion
rathor than their significant accounting policies. These amondments o IAS 1 have beon introduced o holp entitics
mprove accounting policy disclosures so that they provide more wuselul information o investors and other primeary
users ol the linancal stalements. These amendmaenls have beon incorporalied in hese inancial stalements wilth the
primary impact that the matoral accounting policy information has boon disdosed rathor than the significant
accounling policios.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporling standards that are not
yet affective

Thare are corain new standards and amendmenlts o the published accounting and reporting slandards thal will be
apphcable o the Fund for ils annual poriods beginning on or after July 1, 2024 Howewer, those are nol considered o
be relevant or did nol have any material ellect on the Fund's linancial stalements excapl (or:

= The new standard - IFRS 18 Presenlalion and Disclesune in Financial Stalements (IFRS 18) (published In April
2024% wilh applicability date of January 1, 2027 by IASB. IFRS 18 i= yel to be adopled in Pakistan. IFRS 18
when adopled and applicable shall impact the presontation of ‘lncome Slalemant’ wilh ceriain addilional
disclosures in the linancial statements, and

= Amondmonts o IFRS 9 'Financal Instrumonts’ which clanly the date of recogniion and derecognition of a
financial assel or financial Hability including selilemnent of labilities through banking Instruments and channels
including oloctronic ransfers. The amondmoenl when apphed may impact the Uming of recognition and
darecognibion of financal abilitios.

Critical accounling estimates and judgmenls

The preparation of the firancial statoments in conformity with he accounting and reporling standards reguires tho
managemeonl o make estimalos, judgments and assumplions that affect the reported amounts ol assels and
liabilities and income and expenses. I also reguires the managemant o exercise judgment in Lthe application of the
Company's accounling policies. The eslimales and associaled assumplions are based on hislorical experence and
various olher faclors, including expectation of (fulure ovonls, thal are bolieved lo be reasonable under the
circumsiances, the resulls of which form the basis of making judgments abouwl carrying value of assels and labilities.
These estimales and assumplions ame reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions lo accounting estUmales an
rocognisad in the yaar in which the estimate is revised il the revision allects only thal year, or in e yoar of revision
and fulure years il the rovision aflects both the current and Tulure years.

The estimales and judgemonts thal have a significant offect on the financial stalemenis of the Fund relate o
classification and valualion of financial assots (noles 4.2 and 6).

Aceounling convention

These linancial statoments have boen prepared wundor the historical costl convenlion excepl for investments which
have been classified as 'al fair value through profil or loss' and which are measured al [air vahwe.

Functional and presentation currency
llems included in these linancial slalemenls are measured using the currency ol the primary economic environmeni

in which the Fund operates. Theso inancial slatomonts are presenied in Pakistan Rupoes, which is tho Fund's
funclional and proscolalion Curroncy.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

421

422

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The malerial accounling polickes applied in the preparalion of lhese linancal stalemenis are sel oul below. These
policies have bean appliod consistonlly o all the years presentad, unless otherwise stated.

Caszh and cash equivalents

Thess comprise balances with banks in savings and curranl accounts and olher short-term highly lguid investments
wilh original malurities of three months or less.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are mecognised al the Ume he Fund becomes a parly o the conlbraclual provisions ol the
nstruments. These are milally recognised al fair value plus ransaction cosls excapl for financial assels carried "al
fair valua through profil or loss'. Financial assels carrled “al lair value through profil or loss’ are nllially recogmisad al
fair value and ransaction costs are recogniead in the Income Slatemeanl

Classification and subseqguent measurement

4.2.2.1 Debt instruments

423

IFRS 9 has provided a critena for debt securilies whereby these debt securilies are silher classified as:

= al amorised cosl;

- al lair valee through olher comprehensive incame (FVOCH): and
- al fair value through profit or foss (FVPL)

basad on he business modal of tha antily.

Howevar, IFRS 9 also provides an oplion whereby securilles managed as a portlolio or group of assels and whose
porfomance is measursd on a f&ir value basis, 1o be recognized al FVYPL. The Fund & primarily focused on [Eir valua
mlormation and wses thal information lo assess tha assols’ performance and o make decisions. Theralora the
managemanl consdars s Investmont in debl securilies as belng managed as a group of assets and honce has
ciassified tham as FYPL

Impairmant

The fund assesses on a forward-looking basis the axpecled credil losses (ECL) assocated with lis financial assels
{olher han daebl instruments) camed al amortisad cost and FVYOCEL The fund recognises loss allowances for such
lossas al each reporting dale. The measurement of ECL reflocls:

- anunbEsed and probability weighled amount that is detarmmined by evalualing a range of possible oulcomes;
- the Gme valus of money; and
- reasonable and supporable information thal is available without undue cost or alfon al the reporing date aboul

past evenls, curfenl conditions and lorecasts of fulure economic condilions.

The Fund considers thal a financial assel = in defaull when the counlerparly fails 1o make conlaciual payments
wilhin 90 days of whan thay fall due. Further, financial assels are wrilten off by the Fund, in whole or parl, when il has
exhausied all practical recovery efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expeclabion of recovery.

4.2_3.1 Impairment loss on debt securities

Provision for non-parforming debl securilies is made on the basis of ime-basod crilara as prescribad by the SECP
and based on management’s assessment made in line with its provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors
ol tha Managemenl Caompany in accordance wilh the guidelines issued by the SECP Impairmenl losses recognised
on debl securilies can be revarsed through the Income Statemenl

As allowed by he SECP, the Managemanl Company may make provision agains! dabl securilies over and above ha
MiMimum provision reguiremeand prescribed by the SECP, considenng the specific credit and linancial condition of the
dabl securlly isuer and n accordance wilth Lhe provisioning policy duly approved by the Board ol Direclors ol the
Mamagomenl Company. Tha provisioning policy approved by the Board ol Direclors has beon placed on the
Managemen! Company's websile as required under the SECP's circular.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

424

425

4.4

4.6

Regular way contracts

All regular way purchasass and sales of inandcal assels are recognised an the trade date e the dale on which the
Fund commills to purchase or sall the assel Reqular way purchases [ sales of assols roquire delivery ol secunlios
wilhin lwo days from Lhe lrmnsaction date as per the siock exchangs regutalions.

Derecognition

Financial assals are derecognised when the nghls lo receive cash llows lrom the linancial assels have explred or
have been transferrad and the Fund has ransferrod substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Any gain or loss
ansing on derecognition of linancial assals is taken (o the Income Statemeanl

Financial liabilibes
Classification and subsegquent measuremeant

Financial liabililes are recognised al the lmeae when the Fund becomes a parly o the conlraciual provisions of lhe
instruments. Thesa are inilially recognisad al fair value and subsequenlly stated al amortised cosl

Derecognition

A lirancial Hability is democognised whan the obligation under the lability is dischamged, cancelled or oxpired. Any
gain of less ansing on deredcoegnilion of financal abilites = Bken o he lrcoms Sialomeant

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assals and financial kabilities are oflsal and the net amount is reported in the ‘Statement of Assels and
Liabilites' when there ks a legally enforceabla rghl o sel off the recognised amounls and there is an inlentlon lo
sellle on a nel basis, or 1o realise he assels and sollle the Eabiliies simultansous!y.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised whean the Fund has a presaent, legal or constructive, obligation as a resull of pasl evanls, il
s probable thal an outlow of resources ambodying econamic bonaflils will be required 1o sallle the obligalion and a

reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly seviewed and adjusted (o reflect the curmanl
best estimale.

Net asset value per unit

The Nl Assel Value (MAVY) por unil as disclosad in the Slatement of Assels and Liabiliies s calcutatod by dividing
the nel assets of the Fund by the numbser of unils incirculation al the year and.

issuance and redemption of units

Unils issued are recorded at the offer price, detarminad by the Managemanl Company lor the applications recelhved
by the Management Company / dislnbulors during business hours on thal day The ofler price represents the Nel
Assal Value (NAV) per unil as al the close of the business day. plus lhe allowable sales load, provision ol any dulies
and charges and provision for ransaclion costs, [ applicable. The zales load s payable o lthe Managemeanl
Company [ distributors.

Units redeemad are recorded al the redemplion price pravalent on the date on which the Managemen! Company /
distnbulors receive redemplian applications during business hours on that date. The redemplion price represants he
MNAV az on lhe close of the business day, less any dulles, laxes, charges on redemplion and any provision fof
transaclion costs, il applicable.

Distribution to unit holdars

Distribulion lo the wnil holders are recognised wupon declaration and approval by the Board ol Direclors ol the
Managomen! Company. Basad on the Mulual Funds Associalion of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidaelines duly consented
by the SECP, distdbulion for the year also includes porion of incoma already paid on unils redeamed durdng the
year

Distribulions declared subsequent lo the year end reporing dale are considered as non-adjusting evenls and are

recognised in the linancial statements of the yoar in which such distributions am declared and approved by tha
Board of Drectors of the Managemenl Company.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Elemeant of income ! (loss) and capital gains ! (losses) included In prices of units Issued less those In units
radeemed

Element of income represents the difference between Net Asset Value (NAV) per unil on the issuance or redempiion
date, as the case may be, of units and the NAV per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. Further,
ithe slement of mcome 15 a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of iIncome s taken to
unit holders' fund. However, o maintain the same ex-dividend NAV of all unils outstanding on the accounting dafe,
nat alement of income contributed on issue of units ing in unit holders' fund is refunded on units in the same
proportion as dividend bears b accounting income available for distribution.

Revenue recognition

- Gains [ (losses) arsing on sale of investments am included in Income Statement and are recognised on the date
when the transaction lakes place;

- Unrealized appreciation / (diminution) arsing on re-measurement of securtties classified as financal assets "at
fair value through profit or loss' are included in the Income Statement in the perod in which thoy ariso.

- Income on sukuk cerfificates and government securiies i= recognised on a ime proporionate basis wsing the
effective yield method, except for the securities which are classified as Non-Perdorming Asset under Circular No.
33 of 201 2 issucd by the SECP for which the profits are recorded on cash basis; and

- Profit on savings accounis with bank is recognised on an accrual basis.
Exponses

All expenses chargeable to the Fund including remuneration of the Management Company and Truslee and fee to
the SECP are recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual basis.

Taxation
Current

Provision for curment taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxes after taking into account tax
credits and rebates, if any. The charge for cument tax = calculated vsing the provailing tax rates.

Deferrad

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet ability method in respect of all temporary differences arising
from differences between the camying amount of assets and liabiliies in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit

The defermed tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and defemed tax assets are
recognised to the extent that i i probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utiised. Defarmed tax is calculated at the rates that
are expocted to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on enacted tax rates.

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clavse 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordimance, 2001 subject to the comdition that not less than 90 percent of its accounting income for the year, as
reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealsed, is distnbuted amongst the unit holders. Furthermorne, for the
purpose of determining distribution of at least 30 percent of the accounting income, the income distnbuted through
bonus units shall not be taken inta account.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 {minimum tax) under clause 11A of Pan IV of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Eamings par unit

Eamings per unil 15 calculated by dividing the net income for the year-after taxation of the Fund by the weighted
avaerage number of units outstanding during the year.

Eamings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as, in the opinion of the management, the determinaton of
cumulative weightod average number of outstanding units for calculating EPU s not practicable.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

4.14

Foreign currency transiation
Transactions denominated in foreign cumrencies are accounted for in Pakistani Rupees at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the transiation at year end exchange rates for monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the Income Statement
Mote June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
= [Rupees n "000") ——
BALANCES WITH BANKS
In cument accounts 5:1 32 980 74292
In savings accounts 5.2 11,958,776 1,798,596
11,991,756 1,872 888
These include balances of Rs. 9.90 million {2023 Rs. 42 96 million) maintained with MCB Bank Limited (a related
party).
These include a balance of Rs. 10,080.72 million (2023 Rs. 0. 11million ) maintained with MCB istamic Bank Limited
{a related party) thal camies a profit at the rate of 19.70% per annum (2023: 18.50% per annum). Other saving
accounis of the Fund carry profit rates ranging from 17.00% to 21.30% per annum (2023: 12.52% to 20.25%) per
SNnUm.
Mote June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
= [Rupees n "000") ——
INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss
Cormporate sukuk cerificates 6.1.1 2 595 000 275,000
Term deposil receipts 612 - 445 000
Bai muajjal cerificates 613 - 280,000
Certificates of musharakah 614 - -
2 595 000 1,000,000
Corporate sukuk cedificates
Balance i af Juse 30, B4 Erie iz
Porchased | Mariured | 2 pereniage ol
Rt | i oy e ot e :'t:; u—h;ﬂm‘";" Cayig (| e e s i
pu | Bepr % vike wporaciadion| offhe | et
Fusd | menis
e (ITERT 0] AT DR e e (RS | [ 3] e
Mishat Mills Limizd May 3, 2003 Nowember 8, 203 3 monhs KBOR + L25% Fi] - ]
Mishat Mills Lmied Nowmber 23, 203 May23 MM 3 monfe KBOR + 115% ™ 70
JOW suger Wilis Limiled. December 15, 203 Jre M4, 2024 6 o KBOR + 090% am i} - - - - -
JOW suger Wil Limifed. Fobeory 15, 2004 Aogust 15, 204 6 monihe KBOR + 080% [E ] - 74 TS0 TS0000 - SOP% I
{Emal ndusices Limiled.  Febeary 0, 204 Rapust 13 XM 6 monfs KEOR + 050% 3 O 30000 - 201% 15E%
tsmal indusies Limited  Juee 10, X124 Dicemter 10, 2004 1 morhs KBOR +0.15% fi:-] T T8 TES000 - 537% Wi
K - Bleciric Limied May 2. 1M Movember 2, 2004 & mondhs KEOR +015% i ™ THO T % B
Totalas o June 30, 2024 2EE000 2595000
Tolalzs o June 39, 2023 IS000  FTE000

Facevalue of hese: sulsk cerfficaies = Rs. 1,000 000 per corificale
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6.1.2

Term deposil recaipls

Face valup Barkf valie 35 3
o
Purchossd | Mahered | ]
. Profit | sl July - = LE] totsl
Mzme of e invistze comgasy |z dal Matrsy de: Hateg ak | o g e ni:ﬁq athe | et
= e Fusd | meshs
[Rpess in W00} %

MCB isiame: Bark Limied Augusi M MR Aogust M AT A 1515% 445000 50 - - - - -

Total as at June 30, 2024 - =

Total as at Jure 30, 2023 5000 445 000

Bai muajjal certificates

Face valun Asathne B N | Warief vabm s 3

parcentage of

Purchased | Matured |

. oot | AsatJuly| _ | Asatuse| Canying | Maril |Metassel| toil

Hame ol e invesizs company | dmz Maturdy dals Ralmg e | .20 darmg the | seld dursg WA | valee wie | s
| Bew

_ Foud | iy
[Fragmes

Ui Bank Limsad Jume 21, 2023 July 21, 2003 AN XI3F%  ZE0000 =+ 250,000 - * &

Pok Kumesit Imestinent Compeny (Priaie). Oclobher 8, 2023 Mowember 7, 2023 MM 7130% MATE  MAITS £ : £

Limdiext

Pk Oeren It Comparry Limited.~ Oclobar 3,223 November 10,2023 AL 2120% MIAEM 24360 _ X = : -

Total as al Jume 30, 2024 i =

Total @s at June 30, 2023 20000 200000

Certificates of musharakah __—

vl s 3
Face value Az June 3, 20N o
Peoli | sl July Pl ] Bondi ) i el Carying | Market H"d e
Kame o i imvslee comgany T Wehmiydss | Raiing thering i | i during ofthe | imest
e | D WA | vake VEAE
EE bty Fud | mesmls
=

Uinsted Bank Limfed July 21, A3 August T, 2 AL HIER - 00 28000 - < £

Uinfiexd Biank Limiied Pl 7 EE Mgt AE M NOTR - ZO00 2S10W = . = - .

[Faysal Bank Limied Augusd 9, 2023 fgusd 16, 20 AL FHOIS% - 25000 25000 - < £

Faysal Bank Limied AugusU 16, M3 AugusiZ1 A0 MA PSR M0 2500 = . = - .

United Bank Limided Ocloter 80, 0023 Novembsr 10, 003 AA TR - S0 25100 - - -

Faysal Bank Limied Ociober 12, 20121  Oclobar 19,2073 A4 H25% = 0000 250000 5 & & x

Faysal Bank Limitad il 8, 24 Ml 53004 AA MWL . MNO00  AOOOD - g ]

Faysal Bank Limied April 19, 20 Agwil 26, 7024 A TR 1AE00 180000 » - - -

Total as at Jure 30, X240 £ =

Total as at Jume 30, 2073 b :

Het unrealised appreciation / (diminution) on re-measurement Mote June 30, June 30,
of investments classified as “financial assots at fair valuoe 2024 2023
through profit or loss ——— (Rupees in "0007) ——

Markal value of investrments 6.1.1 2,585,000 1,000, 00

Carrying value of investmeants 6.1.1 2505 000 1,000,000

PROFIT RECEIVABLE

Profit recavable on:

- Corporale sukuk cerdiflicales 124 259 10,466

- Bai muajjal certificatos - 57443

- Savings accounls with banks 218,860 a4 6BE
343118 102 5597

ADVANCES AMD OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advance ax B.1 636 B36

Other recaivablos 75,343 64,747

75,979 65 383
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B.a As per clause 47(B) of part IV of the Second Schedule lo the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, payments made to
collective invesiment schemes (ClSs) are exempt from withholding tax under section 1571 and 150, However, during
prior years, withholding tax on profit on =avings: accounts with banks paid 1o the Fund was deducied by varous
withholding agents based on the interpretation issuaed by FBR vide letter C. no. 1(43) DG (WHT2008-VOLII-66417-
R daled 12 May 2015 which regquires every withholding agent o withhold income tax at applicable rates in case a
valid exemplion cerificate under section 159(1) issued by the concemed Commissionar of inland Revenue (CIR) is
not produced before him by the withholdee. The tax withheld on profit on savings accounts with banks amounts {o
Rs. 0.64 million (2023 Rs.0.64 million). Pending resclution of the matter, the amount of withholding tax deducted on
profit on savings accounts with banks has baen shown as advance tax as al June 30, 2024 as, in the opinion of the
managemant, the amount of tax deducted at source will be refunded.

For this purpose, the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on behalfl of vanous mutual funds {(including the
Funds baing managed by the Management Company) had filed a petifion in the Henourable Sindh High Court (SHC)
challenging the above mentioned interpretation of the Federal Board of Revenue (FER) which was decided by the
SHC in favour of FBR. A petition was filed in the Supreme Court of Pakistan by the Funds together with other ClSs
{managed by the Management Company and other Assel Managemant Companies) whereby the Supreme Courl
granied the pefificners leave to appeal from the initial judgment of the SHC.

Hote June 30, June 340,
L PAYABLE TO MCE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT 2024 2023
LIMITED - MANAGEMENT COMPANY —— (Rupees in "0007) —
Management remuneration payable 9.1 7,836 1,600
Sindh Sales Tax payvable on remuneration of the
Management Company 9.2 1,027 208
Allocated expenses payable 9.3 1,006 -
Sales load payable a5 LBz
Seliing and marketing expenses payable a4 13,205 5,739
231 8,129

91 Az per reguiation 61 of the NBFC Regulations, 2008, the Management Company iz entitled to a remuneration egual
fo an amount not exceeding the maximum rate of the management fee as disclosed in the Offernng Document
subject to the total expense ratio limil. Keeping in view the maximum allowable threshold, the Management Company
has charged its remuneralion at the rales ranging from 0.30% to 11.51% per annum (2023: 0.10% t© 20% per
annum} of the gross eamings of the scheme calculated on a daily basis during the year ended June 30, 2024. The
remuneration 1 payvable to the Management Company monthly i arrears.

92 During the vear, an amount of Rs. 568 million (2023: Rs. 2 46 million) was chamged on account of Sales Tax on
management fee levied through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 at the rate of 13% (2023: 13%) and an
amount of Rs. 487 million (2023 Rs_ 2.31 millian) has been paid on accouni of Sales Tax on management fee to tha
Management Company which acts as a collecting agent.

8.3 In accordance with Regulation 60 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company is entitled to charge fees and
expenses related lo registrar services, accounting, operafion and valualion services, related io a Collective
Investment Scheme (CIS).

The Management Company based on it's own discrelion, has charged such expenses at the rales ranging from
0.08% to 1.14% (2023: 0.01%) per annum of the average annual net assets of the Fund.

9.4 The SECP has aliowed the Asset Management Companies to charge selling and markeling expenses to all
categores of open-end mutual funds (except fund of funds) up fo a maximum limit approved by the Board of
Directors of the Management Company as part of annual plan.

Accordingly, the Managemeni Company has charged seling and marketing expenses based on ifs discretion at the
rates ranging from 0.05% 1o @.77% per annum (2023: 0.24% to 0.94% per annum) ,duly authorised by the Board of
Directors, while keeping in view the annual plan, overall retum and the tolal expense ratio limil of the Fund as defined
under the NBFC Regulations.
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SJune 30, June 30,
2024 2023
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES —— (Rupees in "000°) ——
Brokerage payabie ‘ ]
- 5

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There were ne conlingences and commilments culstanding as al Jume 30, 2024 and Junea 30, 2023
TAXATION

The income of the Fund is exempl from Income tax under Clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule lo the Incomea
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject o the condition thal not less than 30% of the accounting incomea for the year as
reducad by capital gains, whelher realised or unrealised, i distibuted amongst the unil holders as cash dividend.
Furthermora, as par Reguiation 63 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Nolified Entities Regulabons, 2008,
the Fund s required to distnbute not less than 90% of its accounting income for the year denved rom sources other
than capilal gains as redoced by such experses as are chamgeable themeon lo the unil holders. Since Ltha
Management Company has distributed the reguired minimum percentage of income eamoed by the Fund for the year
endad June 30, 2024 1o the unit holders in the manner as explained above, no provision for laxation has bean made
in these nancial statements duing e year.

ITha Fund is also exempl ffom the provisions ol Secton 113 (mindmuim lax) under clawse 11A of Part IV ol the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earmings per unit {(EFPU) has nol been disclosed as in the opinion of the management, determination of cumulative
waighled average number of oulstanding units Tor calculating EPU is nol practicable.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

The Tolal Expense Ralio (TER) of the Fund as al June 30, 2024 s 1.10% (2023: 1.14%) which includes 0.07%
(2023 0.06%) representing govemmenl levies on the Fund such as Sales Taxes, fee o the SECP. etc. The
prescribed imil for the ratio s 2.50% (2023: 2.50%) (excluding govermment levies) under the NBFC Regulations for a
collectve inveslmenl schems calegorsed as an "lncome Schamea®.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES OUTSTANDING WITH CONNECTED PERSONS |/ OTHER RELATED PARTIES

Relaled paries /| connected persons of the Fund mclude the Managemenl Company, othar colleclive investment
schames managed by the Managemenl Company, MCB Bank Limited being the Holding Company of tha
Management Company. the Tustes, direclors, key management personnel and other assoctaled undardakings and
connected persons. Conneclad persons also include any parson benaficially owing directly or indiroctly 10% or more
of the units in the issve | nel assets of the Fund.

Transactions wilh conneded persons essenlially comprise of sale and redemption of units, fee on account of
managing the affairs of the Fund, sales load, olher charges and distibution paymenls o conneclted persons. The
transactons with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracled rates and al lerms
detarmined in accordance with markal mles.

Remuneration o the Managemenl Company ol the Fund |s delermined in accordance with the provisions of the
MNBFC Reguiations, 2008 and the Trust Desd.

Allocatod axpenses and seling and markeling expenses are charged o the Fund by the Managemenl Compsany
subject o the maximum prescrbed Tolal Exponse Ratio.

Details of transacions and balances al year and with related parties [ connected persons, other than thosa which
hava been disclosed alsewhers in these inancal stalements, arme as follows:

Details of ransactions with connected persons are as follows: For the vear ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023

== [Rupees in "0007) ——
MCEB Investment Managemeant Limited - Management company

Remunaration of lhe managamenl company 43,727 18,931
Singh Sales Tax on remmuneration of the Managemeaenl company 5,685 24681
Allocated expenses 6,810 HOR
Selling and markeling expensaes 35.541 21,298
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Group | associated companies

MCE Islamic Bank Limited
Profil on savings accounts with banks

Amounis outstanding at year end

For the year anded

MCB Investment Managemeant Limited - Management company

Remuneralion payable

Sindh Sales Tax payable on remuneralion of the Managemenl Company

Allocaled axponses payable

Selling and markeling expenses payabla
Sales load payabla

Receivable from Managament Company

Group { associated companies

MCB Bank Limited
Balance wilh bank
Oiher receivables

MCEB Islamic Bank Limited
Balances wilh banks

MNishat Power Limited
Dividand payabla

Pakgen Power Limited
Dividend payabia

Adamjes Insurance Company Limited Window Takaful Operations

Dividend payable

Directors and Executives of the Management Company

Dividand payable

Unit Holder holding 10% or more
Dividend payablo

Transactions during the year with
connected persons / ralated
parties in units of the Fund:

Group | assoclated company

Admiee Insurance Company Limited Window Taksful Oporabions
Paloggen Powez Limited

Mishal Powa Limiled

Directors and Executives of the Managemend Company

Mandate under discretionary partfolio services
Linit holders holding 10% or mone units"

Group | associated company
Hlyureia Nishial Mok Priveds Limitesd Ermployess Provident Furd

Adamjos inswance Company Limited Window Takaful Operations:

MEA Investmenl Management Limited- Managerment Company
Directors and Executives of the Managpement Company
Mandate under discrefionary portfolio sarvices

Unit holders holding 10% or mone units

June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
—— (Rupeas in "000") ——
927,510 123
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
—— (Rupees in "000") ——
7896 1,600
1.027 208
1.00& =
13,205 5,739
a5 L82
43 12
9.903 42 BE4
15 15
10,080, o5 111
1,715 =
3.o0n1 -
E 7
i 1
z 134
June 30, 204
Asal July | Issand for e all June 30| | As ol July | fesied for hes &l June
01, 2033 cash w_— M 01, 2073 cash R 0, My
Units. [Ruzpees in W) ———
166 .t 195 1 1 - ]
- TrSHEATE 20800000 S557BAATE - TTSEH4E 2080000 567H.E40
- BWTIRS 5B TTOO000 32357 285 - BM0729 SETTO00 323729
27759 1EMETE 15500076 132 062 2T 165468 155038 13,206
45 2 485 2 43 19
1esn - 3,319,971 X3 98r 151997
June 3, B2
Aol huly | lecamd for s 2l June 30| | Asal Judy | lesued for A al Juna
o | ot | P | o | mamm | e | et o o
Units [Rupsses i D) —————
188174 1212 5,386 19817 i 23939 -
147 19 = 166 15 2 - 1w
. JITEEET 3178 567 5 Hrgsr  M1Es s
123570 1553081 16573 2,758 12397 195308 16553 21
Z0BSM8 1427809 3515373 45 MEBDS 142781 61537 49
ZOB4EED 120500 3]0 AN4EE 17E5H - 1 97
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17.1.1

1712

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY du“::'n :|3I], 2024
= At fair value
At “ﬁ:gm through Total
profit or loss
(Rupees in "000")

Financial assets
Balances wilh banks 11,991,756 = 11,991,756
Invastmeants - 2,595 000 2,595 000
Profit recaivalyla 343,119 - J43,119
Other recalvables 75343 - 75,343

12410218 2,585,000 15,005, 218
Financial liabilities
Payable o MCB Investmeaenl Managemenl Lirmiload -

Managament Company 23,169 - 23,169
Payabla against redemplion of unils 21 857 - 21,857
Dividand payable 18,298 - 18,298
Accrued expansaes and other labilitios - - -

63 324 - 535324
June 30, 2023
v At fair value
aut “':::“d through Total
profit or loss
{Rupees in "000°)
Financial assets
Balances with banks 1,872 888 - 1,872 888
Inverstments - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Profil receivable 102 597 - 102,597
Other recalvables 64,747 - B4, 747
gﬂ-mizaz 1 Iﬂﬂﬂl{lﬂﬂ ﬂlﬂ-'#l]é' a2
Financial liabilities
Payable o MCB Investmeaenl Managemenl Lirmiload -

Managemanl Companmy 8,129 - 8.129
Payable against redemption of unils 39,012 - 39012
Dividend payabla 3.091 - 3.081
Accrued expenses and olher habililes 5 - 5

50,237 - 50237

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Iha Furd's objeclive n managing sk is e creation and prolection of unil holders' value. Risk B inheranl 0 tha
Fund's actvibes, bul il s managed through monifonng and controbling aclivities which are pimarily sel up o be
parformed based on limils established by the Managamenl Company, the constilutive documents of the Fund and
the regulations and directives of tha SECP. Thessa limils reflect the business strategy and marke! environment of the
Fund as wall as the level of dsk that the Fund s willing o accepl. The Board of Directors of the Management
Company supervises the ovarall sk managoment approach wilthin the Fund. The Fund s oxposed o markel sk,
liguidity risk and credil risk ansing from the financial nstruments il holds.

Market risk

Marksl nsk s the nsk that the fair value or fulure cash Dows of a financial mestrument will Nlucluate as a resull of
changes in markel prices.

The Manmnagemonl Company manages the markel nsk through diversification of the invesiment portfolio and by
fallowing the ntemal guidelines estabilshed by the Investiment Committes and regulations laid down by the SECP.

Markol sk comprises of thres types of rsks: yield f profil rale rsk, curmency fsk and price risk.
Currency risk

Currancy risk is the risk thal the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrumeant will Necuate because of
changes n fomeign exchange rales. The Fund does nol have any financial instrument in foreign curmencies and hance
s nol exposed Lo such risk

Yield / Profit rate risk

Yield [ profit rate nsk is the nsk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a financial nstruoment will lecluate because
ol changes in markel profit rates. As ol June 30, 2024 the Fund s exposed 1o such risk on lis balances held with
banks and corporate sukuk cafificates. The Investment Commiltoe of the Fund reviews the portfolio of the Fund on a
regular basis o ensure thal the nsk s managed wilhin the acceptable limits.
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a) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

As al June 30, 2024, e Fund s exposad o cash lNow yvield / profil rate sk on savings accounts wilh banks and
cofporale sukuks cerificales. In case of 100 basis polnls increase | decroaso as on June 30, 2024, wilh all olher
variables hald conslant, the nel asseals value of the Fund and the nel income lor the year would have beon lowar /
higher by Rs. 145 54 milllon (2023: Rs. 27 .99 milllon).

Yiedd [ profit mle sensilivily pesithon Tor on-balance sheatl linancial Instruments is based on the earlier of conlractizal
repncing or matunly date and for ofi-balance sheal nstruments s basad on the selllemeant dale.

The Fund's yield [ profil rate sensitivity relaled o linancial assets and financial labilies as al June 30, 2024 can ba
delarmined as follows:

Junl.;‘?;.rm
(3T o o yheld | i raie rish 4
i i Hot exp
bt ot Upto thres ﬂ_ﬂ" "= | More than to yiedd | Total
On-balance sheet financial instroments {Rupees: in "000%
Financial asseis
Halancen with banks 1F00% - 21.30% 11,958, 7 G A2 900 11,991,756
trrvestmerds
“Corporoie sukuk cortificoles 21.55% - Z2.00% 1,080,000 1,545, D00 2,505,
Term dopresifs recoipt=s
«Bas vrumapinl oertificotes
“Certificaies of musharnkah
1,020,000 1,545, 000 2,585 W00
FProfit recenmibic 343,119 343113
Othey recoieshios 5,343 (=
13,008, F /0 1,545, 000 451 447 15,005,218
Finarncial liabilitics
Payable o MCE neestment Momagement
Limated - Managoment Company 23,168 rallo]
Payable agoinst redernpton of unts 21 855 21, BT
Dnvickend porymsble: a2 TE Zroe
Accrmd espenoen and other inbiitios
CREEE (LR
On-balance sheet gap {a) 13,008 FrE 1 5t (D0 dARE 118 14 041 Boa
Off-balance sheeot financial Instrumonts - - - - -
Oif-balance sheoot gap (b) - - - - -
Total profit rate sensitivity gap {a+b) 131,008, TG 1. 545 00 -
Cumuilative profit rale sensitivity gap 1A 008 TG 14 553 76 14 853 76
Sune 30, JZ3
Exposed in yield | profi rake sk
Yieldd | profit rade Wore than three Mk cxpamil
e Uipto thres months and upto More than o i Total
mciihs pErR, ane y=ar profit rate sk
On-batance sheet financial mstrorme s {Rupees in “004)
Financial azscts
Dolances with banks 1262 - 20.25% 1, Fed S ¥ 243 1LEFZE BBE
trrvestmerds
“Corporaie sukuk cortificoios b i 11 25 000 205,000
Term deposits mocopts 15.15% a5, 00 Aa% (00
-Han rumijjal oortificotes 5% SB0L000 280 000
“Certificaies of musharnkah
725,000 2 000 1,000, D00
Profit recenwobic T2 597 102 597
Other receivables B4, 747 B4, 7ar
2,520 50s 245 000 241 638 3,040,202
Finarncial labilitics
Payable o MCB neestmet Monagoment
Limited - hamagomment Company [ ] 19
Payable agoinst redernpbon of unts 35,012 A2
Ddend ponyabie: 32,0091 X001
Accrued exponses and oiber elsilibes 5 5
B0,FAF s AF
On-balance sheet gap {a) 2 5y HO8 278 00D e 500 2 0RO 05
Dff-balance sheet financial mstruoments - - - - -
Oif-balance sheoot gap (b) - - - - -
Total profit rate sensitivity gap {a+b) 3 5y 506 278 000 -
Cumuilative profit rale sensitivity gap 2, 53 5a% 2, 7af 586 2, TE0 558
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17.1.3 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will MTuciuate because of changes
in markel prices (other than those arising from yield / profit risk or currency risk} whether those changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or s issuer, or factors affecling all similar financial
instruments traded in the market. The Fund does not hold any financial instruments that exposes it to price nisk.

17.2 Credit risk

Credit risk s the risk thal the counterparty 1o a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the Fund by failing 1o
discharge ils obligation as it falls due. Credil risk anses from deposils with banks and financial instilutions, profil
receivable on savings accounts with banks _

Credit risk ansing on financial assels i monitored through a regular analysis of financial position of brokers and
other parties. In accordance with the nsk mamagement policy of the Fund, the invesiment manager monilors the
credit position on a daily basis which s revicwed by the Board of Direcilors of the Management Company on a
quarierly basis.

The table below analyses the Fund's maximum exposune o credit nsk:

2024 2023
"Balance as per e Balance as per .
statamant of - “":n statemant of - umm
assets and :I 1 risk assets and v it risk
liabilities liabilitias

Balances with banks 11,991 756 11,991 756 1,872 883 1,872 BRB
Imvestments 2,595,000 2,585 000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Profil recelvable 343,119 343 119 102,597 102,597
Other recelvables 75343 75,343 64,747 64,747

15.005.218 15,005,218 3,040,232 3,040,232

Detalls of credi rating of balances with banks as al June 30, are as follows:
% of financial assets

exposed to credit risk

Ratings 2024 2023

AAA 0.08% 2 00%

AA 1.02% 98.00%

AA- 15.00% .

A+ £3.90% .
100.00% 100.00%

Ratings of investments have been disclosed in related noles to these financial slatements. Since, the assets of tha
Fund amne held with credil worthy counterpartios, therefore any significant credit risk ks mitigated.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit nsk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counlerpariies whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation lo the Fund's lotal credil esposure. The
Fund's portfolio of firancial instruments B diversified and transactions ane entered indo with diverse credit-worthy
counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit sk,

17.3  Liquidity risk

Liquidity rizk is the risk thal the Fund may nol be able to generate sufficient cash resources to sefttle its obligation in
full as they fall due or can only do s0 on terms that are matenally disadvantageous to tha Fund.

The Fund is exposed (o daily redemptions at the option of unit holders. The Fund’s approach o managing quidily s
to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its abiliies when due under
both nommal and stressed conditions. The Fund's policy i therefore, o invest the majority of its assels in
investments that are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed and are considered readily realizable:

As per the NBFC Regulations, the Fund can borrow in the shor-tarm o ensure setiement the maximum [mit of
which is fiftean percant of the net assets up 1o 90 days and would be secured by the assets of the Fund.
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In arder to manage the Fund's overall figuidity, the Fund also has the ability to withhold daily redemplion requests in
exceoss of ten percent of the units in issue and such reguests would be treated as redemplion requests guaidifying for
being processed on the next business day. Such procodure would confinue unfil the outstanding redomption
requests come down o a level below ten percent of the units in issue. The Fund did not withhold any redemptions
during the yvear

The table below summarnies the maturity profile of the Fund's firancial instruments. The analysis info relevant
maturity groupings is based on the remaining year at the end of the reporting period o the contractual maturity dates.
Howeover, tho assets and liabiliies that are receivable / payable on demand including bank balances have boon
included in the maturity grouping of ono month:

June 30, 2024
Wore Han one| Wore han | Wore fhan Financial
Withinone | month and | thres months | opeyear | Mom than| insinements Total
manth upto three | and upto one | and uplo | five years | with no fized
muonths yRar fove years maturity
Fupees i 00"
Financial assets
Balances with banks 11,991,756 = = = = - [ 11.591.756 |
Invesimenis
-Corporate sulusk carificates - 1,060,000 1,545,000 - - - 2 585,000
-Term deposis receipts ; : s 2 - - ;
-Bai muajja cerfificaias - - - - - - -
Cerificates of Musharaksh - - = - = = =
Profit receivable 218,860 - 124,259 - - - 343,119
Ofher recevables 75343 = = - ~ - 75,343
12285855 1060000 1,668,259 = - - 15005218
Financial labilities
Payable fo MEB Investment Management Limiled - 23169 - - - - - 23168
Management Company
Payable agains! redernplion of units 21,857 - - - - - 21,857
Diwidend payable 18,298 - - - - - 18,254
Acoued expanses and alher lisbifies - - - - - - -
63,324 - - - - - 63,324
Met financial assets B e v L WK O O 2 = = = TSI ST
June 30, 2027
Wore thanone| Wiore than | Wore than Financial
Withinone | month and | three months | opeyear | Mom than| insinements Total
mizngh uplo three | and upto ome | and upio | five years | with no fized
manths jyear five years matiaity
Rupees in 000
Financial assets
Balances wilh banks 1872888 - - - - - 1872888
Investmants
“Comporate sukuk carfificates - - - - - - -
“Tarm deposils receipts - 445,000 - - - - 445,000
-Bai muajja cerfificaias 280,000 275,000 - - - 555,000
-Cerificates of Musharakaty - - - - - - -
Profit receivshie 34,688 &r 90a - = = - 102 597
Dither recaivables B4, TAT - - - - - G 747
2252 333 512,909 275,000 - - - 3,040,232
Financial labilities
Payable fo MEB Investment Management Limiled - 8129 - - - - - B.129 |
Management Company
Payable agains! Rademplion of unils ) el - - - - - a0z
Dividend payable 3,08 3,091
Accrued expenses and olher iabififes 5 = - - = - 5|
50,237 - E : - - 50,237
Met financial assets 2,202,086 512 905 275,000 - - - 2 580 09

18. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
botween market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can anise bebweon carmying valucs
and the fair value estimates.
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Underlying the definition of fair value s the presumption thal the Fund is a going concem without any inlention or
rogquiremeant o curtail matoriafly the scale of its operations or o undertake a transacton on advorso Tormes.

Financhl assots which are tradable in an open market are rovalued al the market prices prevailing on the staloment
of assets and liabilittes date. Tho estimated fair value of all other firancal assots and liabilitics s considered not 1o
b significantly different from the respoctive book values.

Fair value hierarchy

Intermational Financial Reporting Standard 13, "Fair Value Moasuroment' roguires tho Fund to classify assols using a
fair value hierarchy that reflocts the significance of the inpuis used in making the measurcments. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: gquoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabiliies;

Lovel 20 inputs othor than guoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability oithor
directly (Le. as pncos) or indirectly (i.o. danved from pnces); and

Lovel 3: inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on obsarvable marko! data (e, unobsorvable inputs).

Az al June 30, 2024 and Jure 30, 2023, the Fund held the following inancial irstruments measurod at fair values:

June 30, 2024
Level1 || Level2 || Level3 || Total
Financial aszots “at fair value (Rupoes in "0007)
through profit or loss®
Comporale sukuk cortificates - 2 595 000 - 2,585 D00
- 2,595,000 - 2,595 000
June 30, 2023 -
Levelt || Level2 Level 3 || Total
Financial asseots “at fair valuo (Rupees in "000°)
through profit or loss"
Corporate sukuk cerntificatos - 275,000 - 275,000
Term deposil recelpls - 445 000 - 445 000
Bal muajjal conificales - 280,000 - ZB0 000
- 1.000.000 - 1.000,000
TOTAL DISTRIBUTION

Dunng the year ended June 30, 2024 the Managemenl Company on behalfl of the Fund, in accordance with an
amendment in clause 51 of the Offering Document, has distributed and re-invosted dividend on a daidly basis. The
amandment was made offective from Octobor 13, 2021

June 30, 2024
Refund of Distribution Total
Declaration date Rate undt
Gan sl capital from income| | distribution
{Rupees In "0007)

From July 1, 2023 1o June 30, 2024 = 19.13 - {1,622 674) (1,622 674)

- (1.622.674) (1.622.674)
June 30, 2023

Decla date Reate st Refund of | th'lbutlnﬂl Total
bafian e ca) from Income| | distribution

{Rupees In "0007)

From July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 1363 - 550,523 550,523
- 550,523 550,523

*“** The Fund |s required o distribule dividend on a dally basis on esach business day, afler the aforemantioned

amondment. The cumulative distribulion por unil for the yoar from July 1, 2023 to Juna 30, 2024 amounted to Rs
219,13 por umil
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Payout Payout

Fayout daie unit Poyouwd date Fayoul date it
July 1, 23 G{M7T8 Seplember 12, A3 00522 Nowember 24, 2023 L0517 Februany b, NEd OLt0
Juby 2, A2 0.0473 Seplember 13, 2003 00525 Nowvember 25, 2023 00499 Febroary 8, 2004 OLO540
by 3, 2023 00474 Scpiembor 14, 2003 00525  Nowember 26, 2023 004aT  Fobruany 7, 2004 01545
July 4, ZS G{ME4 Seplembor 15, 2023 00538 Movember 27, 202) L0563  Februony B, NEd LN &)
duily b, 3 473  Seplember 18, H2X3 00524 November 20, 2023 0514 February 9, 364 O.0sad
duby 6, 202 077  Scplembor 17, 2023 00522 November 29, 2023 00530 February 10, 20024 0544
July T, MZd 00534 Sephembor 18, 2023 00624 Movember 30, 202 00532  Februory 11, 20004 OLtt0
duily B, 2023 L0AB2 ° Seplember 18, HOF3 00530  Decemnber 1, 20023 G528  Februaory 12, 2004 .05
Jduby 8, 2023 00481 Scplember 20, 2003 00531  Decomber 2, 30023 00520 Februany 13, 20024 L)
July 10, 20 O{MBY Seplembor 21, A3 0053  December 3, 2053 CiMET  Februory 14, 2024 [N ]
duily 11, 203 {MBY Seplember 22, NOF3 00529  Decemnber 8, 20023 08  Februaory 15, 2004 LR
duby 12, 2023 00402 Seplember 23, 2003 00521  December 5, 30023 00511 February 16, 2024 s
duly 13, 2073 QM85 Septembor 24, 2003 00520 December G, HIZS 00540  Fobrewy 17, 2004 00550
duily 14, 2023 47T Seplember 25, HNOF3 00519 Decemnber 7, 20023 G571 Februory 18, 2004 LR ]
duby 1%, 2023 00478 Scplembor 26, 2003 00518 December A, 20023 00524  February 18, 2024 0547
duly 16, 203 74 Scptembor 27, 2003 00527 December 9, NIZS 00621 Fobresy 20, 2004 00547
duly 17, 2023 00516 Seplenber 28, HO3 0053 Decernber 10, 2023 00522 February 21, 2004 0.0sa0
duby 18, 2023 00492 Seplember 29, 2003 005415  December 11, 20023 0050 Februany 22, 2024 0.0543
duly 19, 2073 Q{498 Scplembordd, A3 00513 Decernber 12, 203 00817 Fobresy 20, 2004 00540
duly 30, 2023 0aEE  Ociober 1, 2523 00514  December 13, 2023 0521 February 24, 2004 LR =)
Jdulby 1, 2023 00478  Ociober 2, 2023 0517 December T4, 2023 00621  Fobruary 25, 2004 00542
duly F2 207N Q0asl  Ocwober 3, 2023 00513 December 15, 203 0U0hdd  Fobnewy 26, 2024 LNILT B
duly 33, 2023 0aB0  Ociober 4, 2023 00T December 18, 2023 00533  February 27, 2004 00551
Julby B4, 2023 00484  Oclober 5, 2023 00529 Decemnber 17, 2023 00622 Fobruary 28, 2004 L E
duly 5, 2073 Q72 Ocwober &, 2023 0523 Decernber 18, 2003 00518 Fobnewy 29, 2024 [N
duly 296, 2023 00504 Ociober 7, 2023 00520 Decernber 19, 2023 00518 March 1, 2024 00545
July FF, 2023 O.0aR% Oclober 8, 2023 0520 Decernber 20, A2 00628 March 2, X004 00540
duly 38, 203 Q0481  Ocwober 8, 2023 00562  Decernber 21, 2003 0UOS0T  March 3, 3004 [N H]
duly 29, 2023 00480 Owinber 10, 20 00513 Decermnber 22, 2023 00512  March 4, 2024 00548
Jduly 30, 2023 00478 Oclober 11, 2028 0527 Decernber 23, N2 00510 Marnch B, 2004 00548
duly 31, 203 oSG Ociober 12, 2003 0523 Decernber 24, 2007 0UOS0S  March 6, 2004 [N H]
Angrest 1, J02 00484  Ocinber 13, 23 00512  Decernber 286, 2023 00510  March 7, 2024 00547
Aviguest 2, 2123 00498  Ociober 14, 2023 0537 December 26, NG 00515 Manch B, X004 L Ei )
Augrest 3, 2023 00481 Ociober 16, 23 Q0sE  December 27, 203 00531 March 8, X024 00548
Angrest 4, A2 00488  Ociober 16, 20Z3 0U0ST4  Decernber 28, 2023 00518  March 10, 2024 D054
Aviguest 5, 2123 00488  Ociober 17, 2023 0501 Dlecember 29, N3 00624  Manch 11, 2024 LE )
Augrest 6, 2023 00488  Ociober 18, 203 00531 Dlecoernber 30, 2003 00513 March 12, 2024 00548
Angusl T, A2 00481 Ocinber 19, 2EY 00524  Decermnber 31, 2023 00513 March 13, 2004 00544
Avguest B, 2023 00454 Ocinber 20, 2023 0510 oy 1, 024 00515 Manch 14, 2024 LR
Augrest 9, 2023 00481 Ociober 21, X3 Q0508 Jamuory &, 20024 L0507  March 15, 2004 D054
Angust 10, 2073 00508  Ociober 22, NEY 00508 Jamewy 3, 2024 00558 March 18, 2004 00543
Adsgoest 19, 2023 00485  Oclober 23, 2003 00528 Jonuory 4, 2024 00521 March 17, 2024 00540
Augrest 12, 2023 00983 Oclober 24, MO0 0530 Jamuony &, 2024 00515 March 18, 2024 00543
Angust 13, 2023 00482 Ocinber 25, NEY 00618 Jomemy @, 2024 00512  March 19, 2004 LN B
Adsguest 14, J023 0,042  Oclober 246, 2003 0518 Jonuosry T, 2024 00512 March 20, 2024 DS
Augrest 15, 2023 004TE  Owclober 27, MO0 Os02 Jomuory &, 20024 00524 March 21, 2024 0.0537
Angust 16, 2073 00289 Ociober 28, NE3Y 00603 Jomemy @, 2024 00524 March 22, 2004 00548
Adigest 17, 2025 0.0481  Ociober 29, 20073 OuS0d  Jonuory 10, 2024 00526  March 23, 2024 0054
Ausgrest 18, 2023 00481 Owciober 30, 200 QS0E  Jamuory 11, H0d 0516 March 24, 2004 00541
Aasguest 19, 2075 00481  Ociober 31, 20023 QOS2 Januory 12, 2024 Cihid  March 26, 2024 OOsFT
Adsguest 220, I02 00482  Movember 1, 2023 00517 Jonuory 13, 2034 00511 March 26, 2024 D544
Ausgrest 21, 2023 00488 Movember 2, 2023 QOsT  Jamury 14, 20024 00510 March 27, 2024 00550
Aasguest 5, 207 0048F  November 3, 2023 OO51E  Januory 15, 2024 LS  March 268, 2024 [N ]
Adsuest 23, IO 007  Movemnber 4, 2023 00516 Jonuory 16, 2024 0U0495  March 29, 2024 LR
Assguest 24, 2023 00515 Nowember 5, 2023 0514 January 17, 2024 00552  March 30, 2024 00537
Aasguest 5, 207 00522  November &, 2023 OOSE  Januory 18, 2024 00553  March 31, 2024 OOsFT
Adspuest 245, IO 005168  Mowember 7, 2023 0518 Jonuory 19, 2034 00552 April 1, 20024 L]
Assguest IT, 2023 00517  MNowember 8, 2023 0512 January 20, 2024 DOSS2  April 2, 2024 .05 1
Augnest 28, 2075 00505  November 3, 203 OOSE  Januory F1, 2024 L0553  Apeil 3, A4 LN
Adspuest 20, 02 00531  Movember 10, 2023 051l Jonumry X2, X034 00552 Apnl 4, 20024 LNt A
Assgrest DO, 2023 00517  November 11, 2023 0513 January ¥, 2024 00552 Aprl 5, OO
Auguest 31, 2073 00522 November 12, 2523 00513 Januory 24, A24 L05sa2  Mpeil G, 20024 [N ]
Sepbernber 1, 2023 00510  Novenber 13, 2023 G0ET1  Januory 25, N2 G552 Apel T, 2004 00537
Sepiember 2, 2023 00507  November 14, 2023 CO513  Januony 5, 2024 00553 April 0, 2024 0543
‘Seplember 3, 2023 00508  November 15, 2023 00512 Januory ¥7, A24 L0551 Mpeil 9, 224 OOsFT
Sepbernber 8, 20273 O3  Novenber 18, 2023 088 Januory 20, N84 G550 Apel 10, 200 0053,
Sepiember &, 2023 00543  Nowember 17, 2023 0583 Januory M9, 2024 00553 Apnl 11, 20024 0535
‘Sepember 6, 2023 00538  November 18, 20623 OOs0F  Januory 30, A24 L0553  Apeil 12, 2004 LN
Sepbernber T, 20273 00511 Novenber 19, 2023 O0EME  Joanuory 51, G553 Apel T3, 25 00534
September A, 2073 00541  Nowembers 20, 2023 0537 Febnory 1, 2024 00552 Apnl 14, 21 LT ]
Sepiernber 9, 1L 0522 November 21, 2023 00498 Fobnsory 2, 2024 00588 April 15, 2024 D050
Seplernber 10, 2021 00522 November 22, 2023 00498  Febraory 3, 2024 Gsad  Apel 18, 2 LiRiLT B
Scpiember 11, 2023 000527 Nowember 23, 2023 O3 Fohnsry 4, 2004 00T Apnl 17, 2084 0858
G0 Arax A bads 18643

Payout per

Fayout date unit
Rupecs |
Al 18, 2024 LN i
Apnd 19, 2024 Oulsas
Al 30, 2024 LR
Aprl 21, 2024 LT 1]
Apt F3 M1 LLLi % ]
At 20, 2024 LT
April 24, 2024 Ll ]
L LLE i
Apnt 26, 2024 LTI
Aprd T, 2024 LY 1 v
At 28, 12 LLE i 7
Aol 25, 2024 LTI
gl 0, M0 L1 ]
Wy 1, 20024 LLE i ]
My 2, 2004 O
Ity 5, 2 [HE 1]
Nty A4, 2024 (e
My &, 20 0530
Ity 6, 2 S3s
Whay T, 2024 LLLiT ]
Mty B, 2 O0S38
Ity 9, 2 4
Wty 10, A4 LEE RS 1]
Moy 11, 2024 LT
Itay 12, 204 [FE 1% T
My 13, 204 (1R = ]
Moy 14, 2004 LT
Itay 16, B OLshe
My 1, A0 QiS40
May 17, 2004 OsE
Itay 16, B0 [FE1Sg ]
My T8, 204 [+E 1oy
Moy 20, H004 LiL
May i, Ao QG
My 22, N0 QUi
Moy 235, X004 00
May 24, 4 Q0530
My 25, 04 DuiesTR
Moy 245, M0 OUs3T
May FT, i QS
Mty 28, 04 DO
Wlay 240, 004 L5 ]
Mty 30, 004 540
My 31, 204 QUi
Jome 1, A0 LT~
Jdune 2, B (115
Jume T, Ao DUl
June 4, 204 [T "
Jdune &, X4 530
June 6, A4 053
June T, 224 L5
Jdune 8, S04 (115
June g, Aead LS
Jdume W, 00 LiTi -
dune 11, 2024 LRI b
June 12, M4 LN 1V
June 0, 04 LTt
dune 14, 04 LR
June 15, X4 LNt ]
June 16, 004 LTt
dune 1T, H24 LR
June 18, M4 LTt
Jdune 19, Hoa ey
duree 240 24 LLi L T
June 21, M4 L 1% s
Jdune T HGW ey
Jurme 238, 24 LLi L T
June 24, X024 LN 1% 1
Jdune I, K04 LEX S 0]
durme 245, F024 LTt ]
dune 3T, 034 s
Jdunc 20, X0 LEEiS [
duree 243, 24 anhi
dune 30, A0 [HE 1S ]
e
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20 UNIT HOLDERS" FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holdars® fund is represented by redoemable units. These unils are entitfed to dividends and o payment of a
proportionate share based on the Fund's Not Asset Value per unil on the redemplion date. The relovanl movements
are shown on the "Statemnent of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund'.

The Fund has no restriction on the subscription and redemption of units. As required under the NBFC Regulations,
2008 every open end scheme shall maintain fund size (Le. netl assets of the Fund) of Rs 100 million at all times
during the life of the scheme. The Fund has historically maintained and complied with the reguirement of minimwim
fund size al all times.

The Fund's objectives when managing unit holders’ funds are (o safeguard s ability to continue as a going concarm
so lhat il can conlinue lo provide refums lo the unit holders and o maintain 8 strong base of assets lo mest
unexpecied losses or opporiunities.

In accordance with the risk managemen! policies as staled in nole 17, the Fund endeavours o invest the
subscriptions received in appropriate investment avenues while maintaining sufficient iquidity to meet redemptions,
such hquidity being augmented by disposal of investments or shor-term borrowings, where necessary.

21 UNIT HOLDING PATTERN OF THE FUND

Detalls of pattern of unitholding June 30, 2024
Humbaear of Number of Investment v of ﬂﬂlnﬁ
unit holders units held amount Ik
(Rupees in "000")
Individuats 13,226 39,830,505 3,993,050 26.72%.
Insuranco companias 2 9,106 a10 0.01%
Assockaled companics 3 89,125 857 8,812 596 59 65%
Retirement Fund ¥ 1,488 186 148, 819 1.00%
Public limited companies 5 5,289 497 528,950 3.54%
Othiers 32 13.582 054 1,358,205 9.09%
13.275 149 425 305 14,8942 530 100.00%
June 30, 2023
MNumbear of Number of Investrment Pnﬂ tntalg
unit holdars units held amount in e
{Rupees in "000%)
Individuats 1,491 14, 247 BBE 1,424 7TA8 47T B5%.
Insurance companices 4 826 212 82 621 276%
Associated company 1 166 17 -
Retirement Fund 7 494 797 49 480 1.65%
Public limited companies 14 1,382 672 138,267 4 62%
Others 10,528 12,954 581 1,2895.458 43 32%:
12,045 29,906,314 2 990 631 100.00%
22 TOP TEN BROKERS | DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID
Detalls of commission paid by the Fund o top len brokers by percentage during the year are as follows:
Juneo 30,
2024
Parcentage
1 C & M Managoment (Privata) Limited B4 589%
2 leon Management (Privale) Limited 5.80%
3 Magenta Capital (Private) Limited 3.38%
4 Optimus Market (Private) Limited 3.2T%
5 Arif Habib Limited 1.61%
& Currency Market Assodales (Private) Limited 0.B0%:
¥ Alfalah CLSA Securities (Private) Limited 0.55%
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Jumna 30,
2023
Percentage
1 C And M Managemenl (Private) Limited 45 _20%
2 Optimus Market (Private) Limited 25.32%
3 Arif Habib Limited 12 66%
4 Continental Exchange (Private) Limited 6.33%
5 Poarl Securities Limited 3.16%
6 Magenta Capital (Private) Limited 3.16%
i Alfalah CLSA Securilies (Private) Limited 3.168%

23 ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The 1889th, 1590th, 191th, 192nd, 183rd, 194th, 195th & 186th meeting of the Board of Directors were held on July 21,
2023, July 26, 2023, September 28, 2023, October 12, 2023, Gclober 18, 2023, February 02, 2024 April 19, 2024
and April 22, 2024 respectively. Information in respect of allendance by the directors and other persons in the
mestings is given below:

Number of Number ol muT
Namo of direciors Designation meefings || Atendance Atisnded Leave || Mectings nol attondod
held required | granted|

Mr. Haroon Rashd Chairman 8 8 8 - -
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Crrecior 8 8 8 - -
Syod Savail Mookal Hussam Crrecior 8 8 T 1 1851h
Ms. Mavra Adil Khan Crrecior 8 8 ] 2 192nd, 195th
Mr. Muhammad Sagb Salcom ' Ex-Chiel Executive Officer & 5 5 = =
Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy Direcior 8 a8 5 e | 1901h, 192nd, 1951h
Mr. Manzr Mushilag Direcior 8 a8 B8 - -
Mr. Shoaib Mumias Direcior 8 a8 5 e | 192nd, 1931h, 1850h
Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah * Chiel Execulive Officer 8 3 3 =

' e, Muhammad Saqib Saleom resgned om the Board wilth elfect from October 21, 2023,
*Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah has beon appointod on the Board with effocd from Novembor 01, 2023,

24 PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND FUND MANAGER

Detallzs of members of investment commiites of the Fund are as follows:

= Name Designation Qualification Exphionty
Mo. in

1 Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah® Chicf Execufive Officar MBA 3z

2 Mr. Muhammad Asim Chigf Investment Officer MBA, CFA g |

3 Mr. Awais Abdul Sattar Porifolio Manager Equities MBA, CFA 13

4 M. Saad Ahmed Head of Fixed Income MBA 18

5 SyedAbid Al Head of Equities MBA 16

6 Mr. Usama lgbal Fund Manager Graduale 20

*Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from November 01, 2023,

Mr. Saad Ahmed ks the Manager of the Fund as at vear end. Other funds being managed by him are a8 follows:

- Alhamra Govammant Soecurties Plan 1]
- Alhamra CGash Management Oplimizer;
- MCB Cash Managoment Optimizer;

- Pakistan Cash Management Fund,

- MCEB DCF Income Fund;

- MCB Pakistan Sovereign Fund; and

- Pakizian Income Enhancement Fund.
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25 CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Comesponding figures have been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these financial statements,

wherever necessary o facilitate comparnson and to conform with changes in presentation in the cument year. No
significant rearmangements or reclassifications were made in these financial statements.

26 GENERAL
26.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise specified.
7 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorsed for issue on September 25, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.

For MCB Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)

: _-I-_. = a-:'r_'.- ‘f
- - A
N> ey ' WW&%
P ‘__/
-

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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PATTERN OF UNITS HOLDING BY SIZE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Mo. of Unit Holders Unit holdings Total units held
9,305 A, 0D1-10,000 145,107

1,603 B. 10,001 - 100,000 583,541

1,653 C. 100,001 - 1000,000 5,904,083

714 D. 1000,001 & Above 142,792,575

13,275 149,425,305
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PERFORMANCE TABLE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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PERFORMANCE TABLE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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MCB INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Head Office: Znd Floor, Adamjee Houss, |1, Chundrigar Road, Karachi
UAN: (+82-21) 111 468 378 (111 INVEST)
URL: www.mchfunds.com, Email: info@mcbfunds.com



